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- Independent auditors report .

To the Shareholders of
Saudi Re for Cooperative Reinsurance Company

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statementls

Opinioh

| I

We have audited the financial statements of Saudi Re for Cooperative Reinsurance Company, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the statemement of comprehensive
income - reinsurance operations and accumulated surplus, statement of income - shareholders’ operations,
statement of comprehensive income — shareholders' operations, statement of changes in shareholders’
equity and statements of cash flows —reinsurance and shareholders’ operations for the year then ended, and
notes comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2017, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS") as modified by the
Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority ("SAMA™} for the accounting of zakat and income tax.

Basis for Opinioh

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (“I1SAs") as endorsed in
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the professional code of conduct and ethics that are endorsed in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial staterments as a whole, and in forming our opinion therson, and we do not provide a
separate opinicn on these matters.
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Independent Auditors” Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
To the Shareholders of Saudi Re for Cooperative Reinsurance Company

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company) {Continued)

Key Audit Matter {continuedi

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Gross outstanding claims

The Company as at 31 December 2017, has outstanding
claims including claims incurred but not reported {IBNR)
amounting 1o SR 861.05 million as reported in Note 9 of
the financial statements.

The valuation of gross outstanding claims is the key
judgmental area for management given the level of
subjectivity inherent in estimating the impact of claim
events that have occurred for which the ultimate
outcome remains uncertain,

The Company uses a range of actuarial methodologies
to estimate these claims. This require significant
judgments relating to factors and assumptions such as
inflation, claims development pattern and regulatory
requirements.

Due to significance of amount involved and the exercise
of significant judgment by management in the process
for determination of gross outstanding claims, we have
determined it to be a key audit matter.

Refer to note 5 which disclosed the estimated Hability
arising from claims under reinsurance contracts and note
4 which discloses accounting policies for claims.

We assessed the design and implementation and
tested the operating effectiveness of key controls over
management’s processes for claims processing and
payment, including contrels over the completeness and
accuracy of the claim estimates recorded.

We performed substantive tests on the amounts
recorded for a sample of claims notified and paid;
including comparing the cutstanding claims amount to
appropriate source documentation to evaluate the
valuation of outstanding claim reserves.

Using actuarial specialists, we performed re-
projections on claims incurred but not reported relating
10 selected operating segments, where we compared
our re-projected claims incurred but not reported to
those booked by management, and sought to
understand any significant differences. For the
remaining operating segments, we assessed the
reasonableness of methodologies and assumptions
used by the management against recognized actuarial
practices and industry standards to identify and
gvaluate any anomalies.

We evaluated the completeness and accuracy of data
used by management in their calculation of gross
outstanding claims; and evaluated the results of liability
adequacy test,
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Independent Auditors’ Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
To the Shareholders of Saudi Re for Cooperative Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company] (Continued)

Other Information

The management of the Company is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the
information included in the annual report but does not include financial statements and our auditors' report
thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governancs.

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements.

The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the |[FRSs as modified by SAMA for the accounting of zakat and income tax, the applicable
requirements of the Regulations for Companies, and the Company's by-laws, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enakle the preparsation of financial statements that are free from
material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concemn hasis of accounting unless the management sither intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so,

Those charged with governance are responsibls for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditors” Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whale are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes
our opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endosred in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, will
always detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financigl statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

e  |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

s  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.
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independent Auditors’ Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
To the Shareholders of Saudi Re for Cooperative Reinsurance Company
{A Saudi Joint Stock Company) (Continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

s« Conclude on the appropriateness of managements’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 2 material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as & going concem. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 1o draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the sudit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 10 continue as a going concem.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disciosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit of Saudi Re for Cooperative Reinsurance Company.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
sthical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters cormmunicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extrernely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consegquences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

KPMG Al Fozan & Partners PKF Al-Bassam & Co.
Certified Public Accountants Allied Accountants

P. 0. Box 69658

Riyadh 11257

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
L™ G

{ L/“
Ibrahim A. Al Bassam
Certified Public Accountant Certified Public Accountant
License No. 371 License No. 337

11 Rajab 1439H
(28 March 2018)

























SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2017

1. ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Saudi Reinsurance Company (the “Company”) is a Saudi Joint Stock Coneggstgred in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
under commercial registration number 1010250125 dated 12 Jurn@dahl1429H (corresponding to 17 May 2008) with a
branch in the Federal Territory of Labuan, Malaysia with license number IS2®1PHe address of the Company’s registered
office is at P.O. Box 30025 Riyadh 11372, Al Wadi, Northern Ring Road West, Exit 7, Building 4130, Riyadh, Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia

During the year, the Company's invested in 49.9% of the ordéfemes of Probitas Holdings (Bermuda) Limited (“PHBL").
PHBL has invested in insurance and reinsurance businesses including Lloyad imacondon, United Kingdom. The
Company has accounted for thiséstment as an associate (equity accounted investee).

The objective of the Company is to transact cooperative reinsurance aad ealftities inside and outside the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have bgeaparedn thehistorical cosbasis except fothe measuremef investments heldt fair
valuethrough income statement.

Statement of compliance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared

a) in accordance withnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as modified by the SaabiaArMonetary
Authority (“SAMA”) for the accounting of zakat and income taxhieh requires, adoption of all IFRSs as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board\SB”) except for the application of International Accounting Standard (IAS)
12 - “Income Taxes” and IFRIC 21“Levies” so far as these relate to zakat and income Aaxper the SAMA Circular
no. 381000074519 dated April 11, 2017 and subsequent amesdtheotigh certain clarifications relating to the
accounting for zakat and income tax (“SAMA Circular”), the Zakat and Income tax are to bedacara quarterly basis
through shareholders equity under retained earnirigs.change in framework, howeveiges not result in any change in
the company’s accounting policy for zakat and tax.

b) in compliance with the applicable requiremeRtsgulations for Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and the
Company’s Bylaws.

Basis of presentation

As required by Saudi Arabian insurance regulations, the Compaimfaims separate accounts feinsuranceperations and
shareholdersbperations. The physical custody of all assets related teihsuranceperations andghareholdersbperations
are held by the Company. Revenues and expenses clearly attributable to eititgaaetiecorded in the respective accounts.
The basis of allocation of other revenue and expenses from joint operati®ierimined by the management and Board of
Directors.

The Company is required to distribute 10% of the net surplus froreurgince operations to policyholders and the remaining
90% to the shareholders of the Company in accordance with the Insurance Law amdgehtgdien Regulations issued by
SAMA. Any deficit arising on reinsurance operations is transferred to the shareholdersiomgerafull.

In accordance with the Company’s-gws and Article 70 (2g) of the Insuranbaplementing Regulations of SAMA, a
minimum of 20% of the annual net income is required to be traadféy a statutory reserve until this reserve equals flde pa
up capital of the Company. This reserve is not available foililititn. Due to accumulated losses at reporting date, no such
transfer was made.

Functional and presentational currency
The functional and presentational currency of the Company is Saudi Riyal.

3. NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

The accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial statementmsistent with those used in the previous
financial year, except for the adoption of the following new standards andantieexdments to existing standards mentioned
below:

New and amended standards issued and adopted

Disclosure initiative (Amendments to IAS 7)

Amendments to IAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”, applicable for the annual periods beginning oreof afénuary 2017.
The amendments require disclosures that enadses of financial statements to evaluate changes ititleirising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flow andasim changes.




SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017

3. NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS (Continued)

Standards issued but not yet effective

In addition to the above mentioned standards, the following standaddmterpretations that are issued, but not yet
effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statearerttisclosed below. The Company idteto
adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective. Furthempany has chosen not to early adopt the
amendments and revisions to the International Financial Reportingagianathich have been published and are
mandatory for comjdnce for the Company with effect from future dates.

IFRS 2 Shardased payment

Amendments to IFRS 2 “Sharebased Payment”, applicable for the period beginning on or after 1 Januaryr?@18
amendments cover classification and measurement of three accountindirsteaseasurement of casiettled share
based payments, second, classification of shased payments settled net of tax withholdings, and third, accountting f
a modification of a sharkased paymentdm casksettled to equitysettled. The impact is not material for the Company.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The implementation of IFRS 9 is expected to result in a significant portifinamcial assets currently classified as
availablefor-sale being e-classified as at fair value through profit or loss or fair value tftvaather comprehensive
income (OCI). Credit allowances for financial assets carried at amortizeagintbdebt securities measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognized in OCI, are expected to increase due to thectigroof the expected credit loss
methodology. The Company will avail of the exemptions availabteingurers and igeferring the implementation of
IFRS 9 until a later date, but no later than Janua@p21.

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 15— “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” applicable from 1 Janud@ pfesents a fivetep model to
determine when to recognize revenue, and at what amount. The applicatiis stahded could have a significant
impact on how and when revenue is recognized (except for contracts thahamehei scope of the Standards on leases,
insurance contracts and financial instruments), with new estimategudgments, and the possibility ofvemue
recognition being accelerated or deferred. The Company is currently agsssimplication and effects of adopting
IFRS 15 and the management believe that adoption of IFRS 15owilave a material impact on the Company’s
financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16— “Leases”, applicable for the period beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Whetarelard eliminates the
current dual accounting model for lessees under IAS 17, which distives between epalance sheet finance leases
and offbalance sheet operating leases. Instead, IFRS 16 propebataane sheet accounting model. The impact is not
material for the Company.

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 ‘Insurance contracts’ was published on May 18, 2017 witleffeetive date of January 1, 2021. IFRS 17
provides comprehensive guidance on accounting for insurance contradtsvesitnent contracts with discretionary
participation features. For ndifie and shorterm life insurance contracts IFRS 17 introducesdatory discounting of
loss reserves as well as a risk adjustment forfimamcial risk, for which confidence level equivalent disclosure vell b
required. Further, IFRS 17 will change the presentation of insurancadomvenue, as gross written premiwill no
longer be presented in profit or loss. At the date of publication of themecih statements, it was not practicable to
quantify what the potential impact would be on the financial statenogce IFRS 17 will be adopted.

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of theseifih statements are set out below:

Retrocession

The Company uses retrocession agreenteresduce its exposure to catastrophic losses on risks assuinetkase its
aggregate underwriting capacifyhe ceding of risk to retrocessionaires does not relieve thep&uy fromits direct
obligations toits ceding companies. An impairment reviefvamounts recoverable under retrocession agreengents
performed at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication afrmept arises during the reportipear
Impairment occurs when objective evidence exists that the Companyahaecoveutstanding amounts under the
terms of the contract and when the impact on the amounts that the iGowipp@aeceive from the retrocessionaire can b
measured reliably. The impairment loss is recorded in the statement obbemgive incomeeinsuranceperations and
accumulated surplus.

Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both assumed oeirmswdaatroceded business.




SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Retrocession liabilities represent balances due to retrocessionaires.tipayeble are estimated in a manner consistent wi
the associated retrocession contract. Retroceded assets and liabilities are ideckosban the contractual rights are
extingushed or expired or when the contract is transferred to another party.

Investment in associate

Associates are those entities in which the Company has significanhirélugut not control or joint control, over the ficéal
and operating policies. In&sts in associates are accounted for using the equity method. Theyiatg iacognised at cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial statements include the Cosysaye of the profit or loss andth@r
comprehensive incoraf associategyntil the date on which significant influence ceases.

Cash and cash equivalerst
Cash and cashquivalents comprise of cash in hand, cash at banks and time deptisiée wiiginal maturity of less
than three monthisom the date of acquisition.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment idigstab whichis generally when shareholders
approve the dividend.

Deferred acquisition costs (DAC)

Direct costs incurred during the financial period arising from thiéng or renewing of reinsurance contracts are deferred
to the extent that these costs are recoverable out of future premiums. Subkempitaltrecognitiondeferredcosts are
amortizd using the same basisfor unearned premium#mortization is recorded in the statementomprehensive
income reinsurance operations and accumulated sur@linanges in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future econambenefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amarfizatiul

and are treated as a change in accounting estimate.

An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more frequarly an indication of impairment arises
When the recoverable amounts are less than the carrying saluepairment loss is recognized in tftatement of
comprehensive incomeeinsurance operations and accumulated surplus. DAC is also consideeelibipifity adequacy
test for each repting period.

Deferred policy acquisition costse derecognised when the related contracts are either settled or disposed of

Prepayments

Prepayments represent expenses not yet incurred but already paid inrepafimints are initially recorded as assets
and measured at the amount of cash paid. Subsequently, these are chatgaiment otomprehensive incorme
reinsurance operations aadcumulated surplusnd statement of comprehensive incensdareholdersbperations as
they are consumed or expire with the passage of time.

Property and equipment

Property and equipmeitt stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. Wiiferastg

parts of property and equipment are required to be replaced at intdrealmrhpany recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and dEglates them accordingly. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised
in statement ofomprehensive incomeeinsurance operations and accumulated surplustatement of comprehensive
income shareholdersdperationsas incurred. Freehold laraahd capital work in progress are not depreciated.

The cost of all other property and equipment is depreciated on the sliégimethod over the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:

Building 33 Years
Computers and equipment 35 Years
Furniture and fixtures 5 Years
Motor vehicles 4 Years
Leasehold improvements 10 Years

The assets’ residual values and ush¥els are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. Thegcarryi
values of these assets are reviewed for impairment when events or cimacigasmstances indicate that the carrying
value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where thagaatyies exceed the estimated recoverable
amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when her future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on dereoogpifiihe asset (calculated as the difference

10



SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asséigedim the statement oEomprehensive
income reinsurance operations and accumulated surplus and statement of compeelrtine shareholdrs’
operationsr taken into income the year the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of financial assets

An assessment is made at each statement of financial position date tardetenether there is objective evidence that

a specific financial asset or a group of financial assets may be impamggirment occurs when objective evidence
exists that the Company may not recover outstanding amounts untermtgeof the contract and when the impact on the
amounts that the Comparwill receive can be masured reliably If such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
recognized in the statement@dmprehensive incomeinsurance operations and accumulated surplus or the statement
of comprehensive incomghareholders’ operationgnpairment is determineas follows:

. For assets carried at fair value, impairment is the difference between cost aatlfailess any impairment loss
previously recognized in the statement of reinsurance operatimh@ccumulated surplus the statement of
shareholders’ operations;

o For assets carried at cost, impairment is the difference between carrying valoe present value of future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar fialeasetand

o For assets carried at amortized cost, impairment is the difference between camgingt and the present value
of future cash flows discounted at the original effective special conamiszte.

Grosswritten premiums

Gross written premiums comprise of igieemiums in relation to contracts incepting during the financialipespective

of whether they relate in whole or in part to a later accounting periodluties an estimate of pipeline premiums, being
those premiums written but not reported to @mmpany at the statement of financial position date. Pipeline premiums
are reported as accrued insumpcemiums in the statement of financial position.

Where contract terms require the reinstatement of coverage after a ceding congsanyt® mandaty reinstatement
premiums are calculated in accordance with the contract terms.

Premiums earned and commission income

Premiums and commission income aagnedver the periodo which they relate to covérereinsurance riskUnearned
premiums and commission income represent the portion of premiumsnvaittecommission income relating to the
unexpired period of coverage aakdeferred based on the following methods:

e Actual number of days for facultative reinsurance awod-proportional reinsurance treaties and portfolio
transferred from insurance companies.

e For proportional reinsurance treaties undensideratiorof the underlying exposur@ relation to the line of
businessas follows:

Line of business Years

Engineering 4

Others 2

Special coracts Based on underlying ternasd nature

The change in the provision for unearned premiums and commission incokenisatdhestatement o€omprehensive
income reinsurance operations and accumulated suiplusderto recognizerevenue over the period to cover the
reinsuranceisks

Claims

Claims, comprie of amountsof claims estimates notified by ceding companies under reinsurance coatrdctated
loss adjustment expenses, net of recoveries and are chastgteioent ofomprehensive incomeeinsurance operations
and accumulated surplus

These include the cost of claims and claims handling expensesypiigd the period, together with the movements in
provisions for outstanding claims, claims incurred but not reportedR)BiXd claims handling provisiorBhe ultimate
liability may be in excess of or less than the amount provided

11



SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Any difference between the provisions at tle@orting date and settlements and provisions in the following igear
included in thestatement of reinsurance operations for that yidae.Company does not discount its liabilities for unpaid
claims as substantiallyostclaims are expected to be paid within one year of the financial reporting date.

The Company estimates its claims provisions based on previous egpefratependent &3 adjusters normally estimate
property claims. In addition, a provision based on managemedgement and the Company’s prior experience, is
maintained for Incurred But Not Reported (‘IBNR’) claims aslveal for the cost of settling pending claims la t
statement of financial position date. The IBNR amount is based oratssicalculated using widely accepted actuarial
techniques such as Chain Ladder, Bornhuetter Ferguson Method anditssshrth are reviewed at regular intervals
by the Company’sindependent actuary. The techniques generally use projections, based onppeshex of the
development of claims over time, to form a view on the likely ultimate slédnbe experienced. Regard is given to the
variations in the business portfolio aptexd and the underlying terms and conditions. Thus, the critical aseuspted
when estimating provisions are that past experience is a reasonable prediictty hfture claims development and that
the rating and business portfolio assumptions diagr aeflection of the likely level of ultimate claims to be incurred for
the more recent years.

The outstanding claims are shown on gross basis and the related shareedeetis shown separately.

Liability adequacy test

At eachstatement of financial positiodate, a liability adequacy test is performed to ensure the adequacy of the
reinsurance contracts liabilities net of related deferred acquisitisis.do performing these testdanagement uses
current best estimates of fme contractual cash flows and claims handling and administration espémsy deficiency

in the carrying amounts is immediately charged to the statement of campiehincomereinsurance operations and
accumulated surplusnitially by writing off relaed dderred acquisition costs amslibsequentlyby establishing a
provision for losses arising from liability adequacy tests.

Premiums receivable

Premiums receivable are recognized when due aedmeasured on initial recognition at the fair value of the
consideations received or receivable. Subsequently, it is measured at amortizetheosarrying value of premiums
receivable is reviewed for impairment whenever events or circuogstandicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable, with thémpairment loss recorded in the statement of reinsurance operations andilatediraurplus.
Premiums receivable are derecognized when the derecognition criteria for firenseies have been met.

Accounts payable and accruals
Liabilities are recognizefibr amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whildetby the supplier
or not.

Special commission income
Special commission income is recognized on an effective yield basis taking astthenprincipal outstanding and the
applicable special commission rate.

Investments held at fair value through income statement
Investments held at fair value throughome statement are investments designated at fair value through inatemesat
at inception. For investments designated as fair value through irstateenent, the following criteria must be met:
e This designation eliminates or significantly reducesitie®nsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets and liabilities or recognising gains or lossedffemeantibasisor
e The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, finandiidsbr both, such assets and liabilities
are managed and their performance is evaluated on a fair valueibassprdance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy.

These investments are initially recorded at fair value. Subsequent tbragtgnition,these investments are measured
at fair value.

Fair value adjustments and realised gains and losses are recognized in the tstatemiesurance operations and
accumulated surplus and the statement of shareholders’ operations.

General and administrative expenses
All expenses incurred during the fiscal yeawt directly relating to underwritingare classified as general and
administrative expenses

12



SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Saudi Riyals at the gxchtmin effect at the date of the transaction
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign ccigerare translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the
statemenbf financial position date. All differences are taken to the respective stattemfcomprehensive incorne
reinsurance operations and accumulated surplus or shareholders’ operations

Zakat and income tax

In accordance with the regulations of the Gen&tdhority of Zakat and Income Tax ("GAZ), the Company is subject
to zakat attributable to th&CC shareholdersaand general publi@nd to income tax attributable to tihen GCC
shareholders. Provision for zakat and income tax is charged to thesstadéamanges in shareholders’ equity. Additional
amounts payable, if any, at the finalization of final assessments are otéamwhen such amounts are determined.
Zakat is computed on the Saudi shareholders' share of equity and and/noomet using the basis defined under the
regulations of GAZT Income tax is computed on the foreign shareholders' share of net inaothe year. Zakat and
income tax are charged to retained earnings as these are liabilities of the shareholder

Zakat and income taare charged in full to the accumulated deficits. Income tax charged to the accumulates) ohef
excess to the proportion of the Saudi shareholders' zakat per share, issckfrovetthe foreign shareholders and credited
to retained earnings.

The Company withholds taxes on certain transactions withregident parties in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia as
required under Saudi Arabian Income Tax Law. Withholding taxes paidhaif lné nonresident parties, which are not
recoverable from such parties, agensed.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has an obligation (legaistructive) as a result of past events, and it is
more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to sedtlghiigation and the amount haeen reliably
estimated.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amourteckpothe statement of financial position only
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounkeenistan intention to settle on a net hasis
or to realise the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Incomexpedse is not offset in the statements of
comprehensive incomeinsurance operations and accumulated surplus and shareholders’ operdéissisequired or
permitted by any accoting standard or interpretation.

Trade date accounting

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognizeddgmézed on the trade date (i.e. the date that
the Company commits to purchase or sell the assets). Regular way pumshsades are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require settlement of assets within the time framealijeestablished by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Segmental reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Companyigterigaged in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses afdch is subject to risk and rewards that are different from thosthef segments.
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the limégoiirg provided to the chief operating
decisionmaker. The chief operating decisioraker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the chigvex@ftioer that makes strategiedsions.

The Company is organised into business units based on their products aressamdi has seven reportable operating
segments as follows:

e Engineering is a comprehensive insurance cover that is available to tredimsuespect of contingencies
which may happen on a construction or erection site. It provides arkallcoser for the works as well as a
liability cover towards third parties for material damage or injurytasisd as a result of the work being
undertaken. The cover is also available for machinery.

e Fire insurance pays for specific losses when a property is damaged to mlegflood, earthquake and other
external perils. It may also provide indemnity for loss of profit ireaEsan industrial or commercial activity.
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SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

4  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

e Marine insurance covers the loss or damage to cargo, terminalg alagnage of ships or other means of
transport of cargo by which property is transferred between tispafiorigin and final destitian

e Motor insurance pays for loss or damage to own motor vehicles involvedideiaisc It also pays for losses
caused by its use to third party properties and bodily injuries

e Protection includes Term and credit life insurance. Term liéaraince isused to provide financial aid for
dependents in case of death and in certain cases of illness or disklgiéitybe an individual or a group policy
with set duration limit on the coverage with the option to renew the polingtoCredit life insurancis used
to pay off a borrower’s debt if that borrower dies, with set duratroit bn coverage with the option to renew
the policy or not.

e General accident covers a variety of events/properties such as monétiesabid personal accidentether
for individual or group.

e Speciality includes company’s participation in Lloyd’s market whgtglises in writing worldwide property,
marine, energy, speciality and ronS. liability insurance

e Others include following business segments:

Whole accountscovers ceding company’s retention (mainly in property, engingenrarine hull, marine
cargo and sometimes include general accident and/or motor) on Excesshzfdiss

Aviation (covers Aviation Hull, Aviation Liabilities and Spare Parts)

Energy (covers Property Damage, Liabilities and Business Interruption)

Agriculture (covers standing crops)

Political Risk (covers Political Violence and Sabotage and Terrorism)

Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss which, in cesfaéutts, is measured differently from profit
or loss in the financial statements.

No intersegment transactions occurred during the year. If any transactiorovee@it, transfer prices between business
segments are set on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transsadticthird parties. Segment income, expense
and results will then include those transfers between businessrasgaigch will then be eliminated at the level of
financial statements of theo@pany.

Deferred Excess of Loss Premiums

The company uses ngmroportional excess of loss retrocession agreements on loss occurrirtg bagdise its exposure
arising fromper risk anctatastrophic losses on riskssume@ndto managaunderwriting capacity. The costs related to
these agreements are amortized over the periashadrwriting contractand charged to statement@imprehensive
income reinsurance operatiomsd accumulated surplus.

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASS UMPTIONS

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements regumaesgement to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets #itiddiand the disclosure of contingent liabilities, & th
reporting date. However, uncertainty about these estimates and assgroptil result in an outcome that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liabiligtedfen the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estinmatertainty at the statement of financial
position date, that have a significant risk of causing a matadjaktment to the carrying amounts of the assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discuss®low.

The ultimate liability arising from claims made under reinsurance contracts

The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims maddeunreinsurance contracts is the Company's most
critical accounting estimate. There are several sources of uncertainty that are ndededngidered in estimating the
liability that the Company will ultimately pay for such claims. The prowi$ay claims incurred but not reported (IBNR)

is an estimation of claims which are expected to be reportedcudrgeto the statement of financial position débe
which the insured event has occurred prior to the end of financial repdatiag
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SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASS UMPTIONS (CONTINUED)

The primary technique adopted managemenin estimating the cost of notified and IBNR claims, is that of udieg t
past claims settlement trends to predict future claims settlement @aithss requiring court or arbitration decisions are
estimated individually. Independent loss adjusters nlyragstimate property claims. Management reviews its provisions
for claims incurred, and claims incurred but not reported, on a quarteidy Haess Risk and Underwriting Committee, in
conjunction with the Company’s external actuaries, compares the chianigesechnical reserves, to determine whether
the change is reasonable.

Deferred acquisition costs

Commission and other costs directly and indirectly related to the acquigittbnenewal ofeinsurance contracts are
recorded as deferred acquisition costs (DAC) and are amortized in the statdnreinsurance operatiorsnd
accumulated surplus over the related period of policy covelfabe assumptions relating to future profitability of these
policies are not realised, the amortization of these costs could be accelerathik andyt also require additional
impairment

Fair values of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to traraiditwilh an orderly transaction beten
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurerasatlistthe presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
¢ inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market feseterdiability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to byrthangoThe fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants usaildhen pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market pdicipants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a néinancial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generatenéco
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by sellirgdther maet participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best usehe Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the tinecessand for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximisingse of relevant obsentalinputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or a&d in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowestitguglthat is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1:Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identeatsasr liabilities.

Level 2:Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significahitéair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable.

Level 3:Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant tdaihevalue measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that aecognizedn the finartial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchhabyassing categorization (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) ahthof each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has detern@nsescdf assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the levelfafrthalue hieraray as explained above.

The InvestmenCommittee, in conjunction with the Company’s exteritgld managetrsvaluates the performance of
each investmerib determine whether tteames reasonablen comparison to the market

The Company’s managemengvaluates thehanges irthe fair value of eachof the other assestand liabilities, to
determine whether thepplied methodologis reasonable.

Accrued insurancepremium
Estimates have to be made for expected future premium from policies alvetidg but not reported at the reporting
date. Due to the nature of reinsurance business, it takes a significantgienioel before all premiums are reported for
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

5. SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)

a given underwriting period. Therefore considerable judgement, experighka@mledge of the business is required by
management in the estimation of accrued premiums due from contract héldera resuls may differ resulting in
positive or negative change in estimated accrued premium income.

The accrued premiumstimates are reviewedgulary by the management by using various methmdsrimarily by

using historical reporting trends as a base for assessing future pramiaunts. Historical premiums developments are

mainly analysed by underwriting year, by type and line of business.

Going concern

The consolidated financial statements have been mepa a going concern basis. TBempanys management has
made an assessment of Bempanys ability to continue as going concem and is satisfied that tt@ompanyhas the
resources to continue in businéssthe foreseeable future. Furthermore, the management is not awareméiznial
uncertainties that may casignificant doubt upon th€ompanys ability to continue asgoing concern.

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on hand
Cash at bankcurrent account

Cash at bankshort timedeposit

2017 2016

Reinsuance Shareholders’ Reinsurance Shareholders’
operations operations operations operations

SR SR SR SR

40,000 -- 20,000 -
24,204,191 9,237,579 15,721,020 27,950,269

29,250,000 22,500,000 27,150,764 -
53,494,191 31,737,579 42,891,784 27,950,269

Time deposits arelpced with banks which havavestment graderedit ratingsand have maturity period of lefisan
three months from the date of original placemawerage &ective interest rate for these depots.35% (2016: 0.95%)

Cash at banks are placed withunterparties whichaveinvestment graderedit ratings.

7. PREMIUMS RECEIVABLE S, NET

2017 2016
SR SR
Premiums receivablgross 364,157,47( 186,910,56(
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (5,286,406) (4,952,966)
Premium receivab net 358,871,064 181,957,59¢
The movement iprovision for doubtful debts is as follows
2017 2016
SR SR
Opening balance 4,952,966 2,622,33€
Chargefor the year 333,440 2,330,63C
Closing balance 5,286,406 4,952,96€
As at31 December, thegeing ofgross premiums receivalslis as follows:
Neither past Pastdue but not impaired
due nor Less than 91to More than Past due and
impaired 90 days 180days 180days impaired Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR
2017 278,703,68¢ 24,191,94F 28,903,67¢ 27,071,751 5,286,406 364,157,47!
2016 114,165,81C 36,198,09C 13,092,43C 18,501,264 4,952,96¢ 186,910,56(
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(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017

7. PREMIUMS RECEIVABLES, NET (CONTINUED)

Premium receivables include premium deposits 023f%23,186 (2016: SR 58,032,495) and claims deposits of SR
13,092,214 (2016: SR 16,148,346). These deposits are retained by the cedentseatepes tf reinsurance treaties
and are of rolling nature. These deposits are released within 12 monthbeafteeption of the reinsurance treaty.

8. INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH | NCOME STATEMENT

i. Investments held at fair value through income statement consist fifllowing:

Reinsuranceoperations

Shareholders’ operations

2017 2016 2017 2016

SR SR SR SR
Money market funds 52,999,225 39,245,08. 102,510,933 85,410,773
Investment funds - - 50,000,000 50,000,000
Equities - - 160,594,703 142,975,208
Fixed ratebondssukuk 47,956,869 52,685,76. 377,834,683 378,817,260
Floatingratebondséukuk 5,359,938 1,516,49 67,811,178 67,375,776
106,316,032  93,447,33 758,751,497 724,579,017

ii. The analysis ofhe composition of investments for shareholders’ operations idlaws:

2017
Quoted Unquoted Total
SR SR SR
Money marketfunds 102,510,933 -- 102,510,933
Investmentfunds -- 50,000,000 50,000,000
Equities 160,594,703 -- 160,594,703
Fixedratebondssukuk 327,770,169 50,064,54 377,834,683
Floatingrate bondssukuk 27,811,178 40,000,000 67,811,178
618,686,983 140,064,584 758,751,497
2016
Quoted Unquoted Total
SR SR SR
Money marketfunds 85,410,773 -- 85,410,773
Investmentfunds -- 50,000,000 50,000,000
Equities 142,975,208 -- 142,975,208
Fixedratebondssukuk 321,252,74€ 57,564,514 378,817,260
Floatingrate bondssukuk 27,375,776 40,000,000 67,375,776
577,014,503 147,564,514 724,579,017

As at 31December 202and 31 December 261all investmentsinder reinsurance operations which are measured at

fair value are, are quoted@heinvestments ibonds and sukuk amounting to SB3 million(31 December 2016: SR
54.2 million)are classified asevel 1 investments while the investment in money market famaginting to SR 52.9
million (31 December 2016 SR Z9million) is classified as level 2 investments

The following table shows aanalysis of financial instruments under shareholders’ operati@asured at fair value

by level of the fair value hierarchy
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

8. INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH | NCOME STATEMENT (CON TINUED)

2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
SR SR SR SR
Moneymarketfunds -- 102,510,933 -- 102,510,933
Investment funds -- -- 50,000,000 50,000,000
Equities 160,594,703 -- - 160,594,703
Fixed-ratebondssukuk 327,770,169 - 50,064,5% 377834683
Floatingrate bondssukuk 27,811,178 -- 40,000,000 67,811,178
516,176,050 102,510,933 140,064,542 758,751,497
2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
SR SR SR SR
Moneymarketfunds -- 85,410,773 -- 85,410,773
Investment funds -- -- 50,000,000 50,000,000
Equities 142,975,208 -- -- 142,975,208
Fixedratebondssukuk 321,252,746 -- 57,564,514 378,817,260
Floatingrate bondssukuk 27,375,776 -- 40,000,000 67,375,776
491,603,730 85,410,773 147,564,514 724,579,017

Fair values of investment fundsbasednthe NAV calculated on the basis of the fair value of the underlying real estate
as disclosed in the fund’s latest available financial statemBmtsDiscounted Cash flow (DCF) model has been used to
value thedebt securities, this model considers the present value of net cashdlbe generated from the debt security,
discounted athe market yield of similar quoted instrument$e estimate is adjusted for the effechofrmarketability

of the debt securés. The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances tntting balances for

the fair value measurement in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Opening Purchase Sale Closing
2017 147,564,514 -- (7,500,000 140,064,542
2016 122,500,000 62,564,514 (37,500,000) 147,564,514

Sensitivity Analysis

For the fair value of level 3 investments, reasonable pessiidinges at the reporting date to one ofstbaificant
unobservable inputs, holding other inputs constant, would have theifujleffects.

2017 2016
Investments held at fair value through income statement 140,064,521 147,564,514
Impact onunrealizedgain for the year ended:
If increased by 1% 1,400,645 1,475,645
If decreased by 1% (1,400,64% (1,475,64%

There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value measureandmts transfers into or out of level 3 fair
value measurements during the year ended 31 Decembéadf@iear ended 31 Decembed @0

As at 3 December 2017, the investments under reinsurance operations inclis®3Rllion (31 December 2016: SR
54.2 million) which aréneldthrough discretionary managed portfolios.

As at 31 December 2017, tivestments undeshareholders’ operations include 886 million (31 December 2016:
SR 454.1 millionwhich areheldthrough discretionary managed portfolios.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

8 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH | NCOME STATEMENT (CON TINUED)

Investments under reinsurance and shareholders’ operations inclod®egonent of SR 4.9 million and SR 25 million
respectively as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: SR 1.5 million and SRIibh2aspectively) available with
external fund managers within the agreed investment guidelines.

iii. The movement of investments held at fair value through incomenstates as follows:

2017 2016
SR SR
Reinsurance  Shareholders’ Reinsurance Shareholders’
operations operations operations operations
Opening balance 93,447,337 724,579,017 73,707,373 687,580,266
Additions 51,000,000 154,342,957 39,232,824 149,522,772
Disposals (42,250,000 (167,339,479 (21,943,821) (125,777,170)
Unrealized gains 3,930,642 46,017,732 2,352,103 12,819,617
Realizedgains 188,053 1,151,270 98,858 433,532
Closing balance 106,316,032 758,751,497 93,447,337 724,579,017
iv. Thegeographical split of investments held at fair value through inctemensent is as follows:
Domestic International Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
SR SR SR SR SR SR
Reinsurance operations
Moneymarketfunds 52,999,225 39,245,084 -- - 52,999,225 39,245,084
Fixed ratebondssukuk - -- 47,956,869 52,685,763 47,956,869 52,685,763
Floatingratebondssukuk -- -- 5,359,938 1,516,490 5,359,938 1,516,490
Total 52,999,225 39,245,084 53,316,807 54,202,253 106,316,032 93,447,337
Domestic International Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
SR SR SR SR SR SR
Shareholders’ operations
Moneymarketfunds 102,510,933 85,410,773 -- -- 102,510,933 85,410,773
Investmenfunds 50,000,000 50,000,000 -- -- 50,000,000 50,000,000
Equities 56,119,572 50,756,270 104,475,131 92,218,938 160,594,703 142,975,208
Fixedratebondssukuk 40,000,000 40,000,000 337,834,683 338,817,260 377,834,683 378,817,260
Floatingratebondssukuk 40,000,000 40,000,000 27,811,178 27,375,776 67,811,178 67,375,776
Total 288,630,505 266,167,043 470,120,992 458,411,974 758,751,497 724,579,017
V. Theanalysis ofnvestmentdy counteparty is as follows:

Fixed income counterparties
Saudi Government

Non Saudi Government

Corporate and financial institutions

Others

Money Market Funds
Investment Funds
Equities

Total

Reinsurance operations

Shareholders’ operations

2017
SR

2016
SR

2017
SR

2016
SR

6,515,314
33,541,603
13,259,890

8,455,551
34,364,229
11,382,473

81,678,226
232,177,615
131,790,020

82,048,223
280,267,121
83,877,692

53,316,807

54,202,253

445,645,861

446,193,036

52,999,225

39,245,084

102,510,933
50,000,000
160,594,703

85,410,773
50,000,000
142,975,208

52,999,225

39,245,084

313,105,636

278,385,981

106,316,032

93,447,337

758,751,497

724,579,017
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9. OUTSTANDING CLAIMS

2017
Retroceded
Gross share Net
SR SR SR
Opening balance 680,013,941 (110,649,986) 569,363,955
Outstanding claims provided during the year 12,214,311 34,882,991 47,097,302
Claims incurred but not reported provided during the year 168,824,715 (90,072,488)  78,752227
Change imutstanding claims 181,039,026  (55,189,497) 125,849,529
C|Os|ng balance 861,052,967 (165,839,483) 695,213,484
2016
Retroceded
Gross share Net
SR SR SR
Opening balance 674,119,737 (60,496,840) 613,622,897
Outstanding claims provided during the year 35,047,589 (47,656,047) (12,608,458)
Claims incurred but not reported provided during the year (29,153,385) (2,497,099) (31,650,484)
Change in outstanding claims 5,894,204  (50,153,146) (44,258,942)
C|Os|ng balance 680,013,941 (110,649,986) 569,363,955
10. PREPAID EXPENSES DEPOSITSAND OTHER ASSETS
2017 2016
Reinsurance Shareholders’ Reinsurance Shareholders’
operations operations operations operations
SR SR SR SR
Refundable deposit 111,350 -- 103,233 --
Recoverable Deposits 54,938,250 -- -- --
Guarantee depogjtNote 33b) 47,250,000 -- 47,250,000 --
Advances to employees 795,206 -- 543,418 --
Advance payments 285,980 -- 281,387 --
Prepaid insurance 397,361 228,471 303,769 45,178
Others 185,893 -- 794,280 --
103,964,040 228,471 49,276,087 45,178
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11. UNEARNED PREMIUMS

2017
Retroceded
Gross share Net
SR SR SR
Opening balance 306,479,380 (3,758,101) 302,721,279
Premiums written during the year 942,006,884 (305,085,407) 636,921,477
Premium earned (786,997,372) 191,164,320 (595,833,052)
Change in unearned premiums 155,009,512 (113,921,087) 41,088,425
Closing balance 461,488,892 (117,679,188) 343,809,704
2016
Retroceded
Gross share Net
SR SR SR
Opening balance 502,998,272  (7,363.,459) 495,634,813
Premiums written during the year 985,510,354 (47,326,048) 938,184,306
Premiums earned (1,182,029,246) 50,931,406 (1,131,097,840)
Change in unearned premiums (196,518,892) 3,605,358  (192,913,534)
Closing balance 306,479,380 (3,758,101) 302,721,279
12. DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS
2017 2016
SR SR
Opening balance 81,705,133 94,148,447
Incurred during the year 164,766,114 152,249,132
Charged for the year (146,126,103) (164,692,446)
Closing balance 100,345,144 81,705,133
13. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET
a) Reinsurance operations:
Computers Furniture
and and Motor Leasehold Work in
Equipment  Fixtures Vehicles Improvements  Progress Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR
Cost:
As at 1 January 201 11,792,827 362,469 723,661 368,834 178,744 13,426,535
Additions during the year 724,418 4,200 -- -- 39,119 767,737
As at 31 December 201 12,517,245 366,669 723,661 368,834 217,863 14,194,272
Accumulated depreciation:
As at 1 January 201 9,326,559 233,042 391,331 72,948 - 10,023,880
Charged for the year 1,630,205 47,047 170,058 36,693 -- 1,884,003
As at 31 December 201 10,956,764 280,089 561,389 109,641 - 11,907,883
Net book value
As at 31 December 201 1,560,481 86,580 162,272 259,193 217,863 2,286,389
As at 31 December 261 2,466,268 129,427 332,330 295,886 178,744 3,402,655

* Work in progress represents certain advances for the IT infrastructure.
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13. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET (CONTINUED)

a) Reinsurance operations (continued)

Following is the depreciation charge for reinsurance operations:

2017 2016
SR SR
Depreciation charge for the year 1,884,003 2,349,025
Allocatedfrom shareholders’ operations 860,529 888,748
2,744,532 3,237,773
b) Shareholders’ operations:
Furniture and
Land Building Fixtures Total
SR SR SR SR
Cost:
As at 1 January 201 18,329,960 11,454,040 4,706,907 34,490,907
Additions during the year -- -- -- --
As at 31 December 201 18,329,960 11,454,040 4,706,907 34,490,907
Accumulated depreciation:
As atl January 204 -- 1,015,151 1,365,647 2,380,798
Charged for the year -- 346,159 514,370 860,529
As at 31 December 2021 -- 1,361,310 1,880,017 3,241,327
Net book value:
As at 31 December 201 18,329,960 10,092,730 2,826,890 31,249,58C
As at 31 December 261 18,329,960 10,438,889 3,341,260 32,110,109
14. TIME DEPOSITS
2017 2016
Reinsurance Shareholders’ Reinsurance Shareholders'’
operations operations operations operations
SR SR SR SR
Deposits with banks 58,003,125 -- 67,551,600 112,456,507

Time deposits are placed witkanks which have credit ratings line with Company’s investment policy and have
maturity period of more than three months from the date of origiae¢ment. Such deposits earn special commission at
an average effective commission ratd &% perannum (31December 208: 2.93% per annum)

15. ACCRUED INSURANCE PREMIUMS

The gross written premiums (GWP) of proportional tresty facultative reinsurance contracts include estimates of
premiums due to the company but not yet reported by the cadésmportion of GWP is considered as pipeline premium
and accounted in the Statement of Financial Position as ‘Accrued insuramcieinpsé net of related acquisition
costs. These pipeline/accrued premiums are estimated at the inception of theramdestontract based on
cedents/brokers forecasts and management’'s evaluation of these $orbtashigement reviews and evaluates all
premium estimates, comparing actual premiums to expected ultimate peomwmuarterly basis and any adjustments
to these stimates are recorded in the financial statements as and when updatediioh comes to light

16. UNEARNED COMMISSION INCOME

2017 2016

SR SR

Opening balance 848,245 1,806,605
Commission received on retrocedagsiness during the year 17,952,277 2,023,903
Commission earned on retroceded business during the year (11,258,223) (2,982,263)
Closing balance 7,542,299 848,245
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17.  INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

31 December 31 Decembel

2017 2016

SR SR
Addition during the year 93,750,000 --
Share of profit oBnassociate 165,962 --
Share in foreign currency translation adjustments (1,961,580) --
31 December 91,954,382 --

The Company, on 6 October 2017, acqui#&d9% of the ordinary shares of Probitas Holdings (Bermuda) Limited
(“PHBL"). The Company has accounted for this investment as an associate (equityextaowestee). PHBL operates
in insurance and reinsurance businesses including Lloyds market inrl,&hdted Kingdom.

As at 31 December 2017, the total asaats total liabilitiesof PHBL amount to SR 609 million andSR 453.9 million
respectively. The loss for the yesrded 31 December 2017 amounts to SR fillion.

18. EMPLOYEES’ END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

The movement in provision for eral-service benefits for the years ended 31 December are as follows:

2017 2016
SR SR
Balance at beginning of the year 3,958,044 3,164,78B
Charge for the year 2,155,95 1,174,484
Interest cost - --
Amount recognized inincome statement 2,155,915 1,174,484
Benefits paid during the year (384,682 (381,18)
Balance at the end of the year 5,729,77 3,958,044
Net defined benefit as at yeand is as follows:
2017 2016
SR SR
Present value of defined benefit obligation 5,729,277 3,958,044

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes as to one of the relevant actuarial asssinfygiiding other assumptions constant, the
amount of defined benefitbligations would have been:

2017 2016
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Future salary growth (5% movement) 275,555 (275,555) 194,418 (194,418)

Risks associated with defined benefit plans
Salary increaserisk:

The retirement benefif the company is one where the benefit is linked with final salary riSk arises when the actual
salary increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liabilityiaglyord
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19. ACCRUED EXPENSES ANDOTHER LIABILITIES

Consultancy fees
Employees’ bonus

Withholding tax payable
Professional fees payable
Remunerations

Meetings fees and expenses
Others

2017 2016
Reinsurance Shareholders’ Reinsurance Shareholders’
operations operations operations operations
SR SR SR SR
- 1,390,097 = 4,371,910
2,700,000 1,500,000 2,074,019 --
1,387,475 42,312 683,920 -
1,120,771 2,355,643 853,008 1,531,172
-- 1,020,000 - --
-- 761,840 -- 399,487
534,405 - 295,301 --

5,742,651 7,069,892

3,906,248 6,302,569
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20. CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT T ABLE

The following table shows the estimates of cumulative incurred glaieiading both claims notified and incurred but refiorted foreach successive underwriting year at each reporting
date, together with cumulative payments to date. The developmesmsfrance liabilitis provides a measure of ther@pany’s ability to estimate the ltate value of the claims. The

Company aims to maintain adequate reserves in respectrehgarance business in order to protect against adverse future claimgrespand developments. As claims develop and
the ultimate cost of claims becomes more certain, adverse claims expenghoeeliminated which results in the release of reserves from earlierwriting years. In order to amtain

adequate reservediet @mpany will transfer muc of this release to the fututmderwriting yeas’ reserves when the development of claims is less mature and there is mueh great

uncertainty attached to the ultimate cost of claims.

Gross reinsurance contract oatsdingclaims provision for 20Z:

Underwriting year

At end of underwriting year
One year later

Two years later

Three years later

Four years later

Five years later

Current estimate of cumulative
claims incurred

Cumulative payments todate
Liability recognized for 2011 andprior

Total gross outstanding claims provision per
the statement of financial position

2011 and 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Total
prior SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
SR
70,116,212 150,612,696 188,090,435 244,579,339 168,487,853 326,179,465 -
241,196,744 345577,987 364,560,253 1,078,283,840 328,300,916 - -
271,763,740 290,915,664 353,047,867 1,098,821,220 - -- --
261,725,411 290,830,815 372,309,950 - - - -
261,366,939 295,796,344 - - - - -
262,016,588 - - - - - -
262,016,588 295,796,344 372,309,950 1,098,821,220 328,300,916 326,179,465 2,683,424,483
(233,742,651) (245,971,959) (300,785,325) (929,395,405) (109,453,301) (25,784,68) (1,845,133,310)
22,761,794 22,761,794
22,761,794 28,273,937 49,824,385 71,524,625 169,425815 218,847,615 300,394,78 861,052,967
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20 CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT T ABLE (CONTINUED)

Gross reinsurance contract outstanding claims provision fd@:201

Underwritingyear 2010and 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Total

prior SR SR SR SR SR SR SR

SR
At end of underwriting year 63,230,532 69,164,521 150,462,724 187,143,372 244,219,320 166,623,103 --
One year later 85,920,289 240,626,386 345,533,036 363,013,230 1,077,604,859 - -
Two years later 128,607,311 271,155,615 290,774,616 352,024,496 -- -- --
Three years later 136,476,277 261,439,051 290,304,834 - - - -
Four years later 138,517,833 261,215,205 -- -- -- -- --
Five years later 127,676,417 - - - - - -
Current estimate of cumulative
claims incurred 127,676,417 261,215,205 290,304,834 352,024,496 1,077,604,859 166,623,103 2,275,448,914
Cumulative payments to date (112,311,592) (224,398,803) (227,894,518) (262,245,047) (783,481,842) 5,270,767 (1,605,061,03p
Liability recognized for 20Q and prior 9,626,062 9,626,062
Total gross outstandingaims provision per
the statement of financial position

9,626,062 15,364,825 36,816,402 62,410,316 89,779,449 294,123,017 171,893,870 680,013,941
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20 CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT T ABLE (CONTINUED)

Net reinsurance contract owtstling claims provision for 201

Underwriting year 2011 and 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Total
prior SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
SR
At end of underwriting year 70,116,212 150,832,686 159,996,525 232,977,805 165,722,592 218,976,447 --
One year later 196,783,260 333,431,559 321,140,999 994,792,461 325,244,631 - -
Two years later 231,778,897 283,129,421 324,313,173 1,008,411,285 - - -
Three years later 226,023,210 277,802,280 342,110,021 - - -- --
Four years later 222,427,436 283,425,994 - - - - -
Five years later 223,532,392 - - - - - -
Current estimate of cumulative
claims incurred 223,532,392 283,425,994 342,110,021 1,008,411,285 325,244,631 218,976,447 2,401,700,770
Cumulative payments to date (195,392,048) (243,307,039) (281,483,700) (866,407,109) (109,340,766) (24,616,25) (1,720,546,877)
Liability recognized for 2011 and prior 14,059,591 14,059,591
Total net outstanding claims provision per
the statement of financial position
14,059,591 28,140,344 40,118,955 60,626,321 142,004,176 215,903,86 194,360,23 695,213,484
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20 CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT T ABLE (CONTINUED)

Net reinsurance contract outstanding claims provision fo6201

Underwriting year

At end of underwriting year
One year later

Two years later

Three years later

Four years later

Five years later

Current estimate of cumulative
claims incurred

Net cumulative payments to date

Liability recognized for 20@ and prior

Total net outstanding claims provision per the
statement of financigdosition

2010and 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Total

prior SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
SR

42,015,295 69,164,521 150,682,714 159,049,462 232,617,786 165,447,892 -

29,726,072 196,212,903 333,386,920 319,593,960 994,792,461 - -

79,016,403 231,170,766 282,989,674 324,313,173 - - -

90,768,394 225,736,815 277,802,280 - - - -

95,157,209 222,427,436 - - - - -

88,613,263 - - - - - -

88,613,263 222,427,436 277,802,280 324,313,173 994,792,461 165,447,892 2,073,396,505

(76,749,150) (186,564,467) (225,310,469) (244,019,492) (779,536,317) 5,270,769 (1,506,909,125

2,876,576 2,876,576

2,876,576 11,864,113 35,862,969 52,491,811 80,293,681 215,256,144 170,718,661 569,363,955
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21. ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX

a) Zakat

Zakatcharge for the year of SE3,360,6742016: SR15,229,023) is based on the following

2017 2016
SR SR
Share Capital 1,000,000,00C 1,000,000,00C
Statutory reserve beginning of the year 6,070,924 6,070,924
Accumulated deficit— beginning of the year (200,769,953) (203,934,200)
Adjusted net Income for the year 40,623,626 12,290,605
Provisions 33,491,183 30,215,839
879,415,780 844,643,168
Deductions:
Statutory deposit (100,000,000)  (100,000,000)
Others norcurrent assets (240,135,273) (117,217,897)
Zakat base 539,280,507 627,425,271
Zakat base for Saudi shareholders 9.10% (2016: 97.0%9%6) 534,426,982 609,160,921
Zakat provision for the year (Zakat base * 2.5%) 13,360,674 15,229,023
b) Income tax
Income tax for the year of SR3/804(2016: SR70,559 is based on the following:
2017 2016
SR SR
Net income fothe year 38,887,887 19,566,810
Adjusted profit 40,992,560 12,290,605
Portion of net taxablsncome for norSaudi shareholdefs90% (2016: 2.91%) 368,933 357,780
Non-GCC share ihossesarried forward up to 25% of their share from the portion
of taxable income 92,233 89,445
KSA operations' income tax base 276,700 268,335
Labuan Branch Income tax Base 11,714,644 6,664,129
¢) The movement of the provision forzakat and income tax is as follows:
2017 2016
SR SR
Opening balance 39,728,370 39,418,724
Income tax provision for the year 73,804 70,554
Zakat provision for the year 13,360,674 15,229,023

Paid during the year (15,731,478)

(14,989,931)

Closing balance 37,431,370

39,728,370
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21. ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
d) Status of assessmest

The Company has filed its Tax / Zakat returns for the years ended 8inbec2008 to 2016 with the General Authority
of Zakat and Income Tax (GAZT). The company has received the final assesfem#rgs/ears ended 31 December 2008
to 2013. The assessments for the years ended 31 December 2014 to 2016 astastitliog.

Zakat and income tax provisions are calculated based on the Companysdegstanding of the zakat and tax regulations.
Additional zakat and income tax provisions are accounteh foover any differences that may arise on the final Zakat and
income tax assessments when received from GAZT and the Compamgist guovision for Zakat and income tax

e) Status of appeals

The Company has filed appeals against the GAZT’s assessment of atidaiatataxand delay fines for the years 2008
to 2013. The Preliminary Appeal Committee (PAC) has wsteeRuling on theappeals filed. The Ruling upheld the
Company’s appeal on certain items of the appeal and rejected the appeal on therthéfHe Company has filed an
appeal against the PAC Ruling with tHegher Appeal Committee (HACYhe HAC has not yet fixed a héag session
for the discussion of the said appeal.

22. SHARE CAPITAL

The authorized, issued and paid up share cagfithle Company is SR 1 billion divided into 100 million shares of SR 10
eachfor the years 204and 208.

23. STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance witlthe Company’s bylawsand Article 70 (2g) of the Insurance Implementing Regulations of SAMA
minimum of20% of the annual net income is required to be transferred to a statutory reseneisingibérve equals the
paid up capital of the Companyhis reserve isiot available for distribution. Due to accumulated losses, no such transfe
has been made for the year ended 31 Decemb@&ra2{@l31 December 2016

24. GENERAL AND ADMINIST RATIVE EXPENSES

2017 2016
Reinsurance Shareholders’ Reinsurance Shareholders’
operations operations operations operations
SR SR SR SR
Salaries and related benefits 25,870,571 2,899,288 23,729,442 2,617,311
Provisionfor doubtful receivables 333,440 -- 2,330,630 --
Training 648,515 5,531 395,032 500
Travelling expenses 1,604,064 326,310 1,013,193 231,731
Depreciation (Note 13) 2,744,532 -- 3,237,770 --
Rent andoremises expenses 802,658 -- 873,102 --
Advertising 721,879 43,730 346,967 30,660
Professional fees 1,792,356 2,870,246 1,651,015 1,432,171
Withholding tax 157,813 180,827 327,284 20,714
Consulting fees 356,670 - 159,656 4,050,000
Licensing Fees 98,067 500,670 90,552 400,000
Othes 3,742,780 1,026,971 3,903,872 1,068,057

38,873,345 7,853,573 38,058,515 9,851,144

25. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION , MEETING FEE AND EXPENSES

2017 2016

SR SR

Board of directors’ remuneration 1,943,396 1,020,000
Meetings fees and expenses 1,058,835 556,144

3,002,231 1,576,144
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26. RELATED PARTY TRANSA CTIONS AND BALANCES

Related parties represent major shareholders and key management persihven€bofpany. The Company transacts with
its related parties in the ordinary course of business. The tramsaatith related parties avedertaken at mutually agreed
terms, which are approved by the management.

Details of transactions and balances with related partigsydine yeaother than those which have been disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements are disclosed helow

Amount of transactions
Related party Nature of transactions for the year ended Balance as at

31December 31 December 31December 31 December

2017 2016 2017 2016
SR SR SR SR
Board of Directors - Consulting fees 788,123 330,233 442,200 --
- Remunerations, meetiafees
and expenses 3,002,231 1,576,144 1,563,507 250,500
Key management - Shortterm benefits 8,812,170 8,534,209 1,294,000 1,096,000
Personnel - End of service benefits 1,029,722 427,429 3,977,260 1,434,572
Eeorrnepszrrlwlteesd b - Gross written premiums 3,837,467 2,936,227 1,960,973 2,018,548
thg Board ¥ _Claims incurred 2,193,770 4,221,407 2,476,077 2,285,317
members - Commissios 1,064,584 2,453,122 -- --
- Refundable deposit 37,500,375 -- 37,500,375 --
- HSBCcustodian fees 154,000 130,000 30,996 21,821

Key management personnel are persons having authority and respgn&ibifilanning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Company, directly or indirectly and compta® management executives including the Chief Executive
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

Balances with related parties are includecgiamiumreceivables, accrueelkpenses and other liabilities shown in the
statement of financial position.

27. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluteegarningsper share fothe yeass ended 31 Decemb@017 and31 DecembeR016 havebeen calculated
by dividing netincomefor theyear by theaverageordinary issued and outstanding shares at the et péar.

28. STATUTORY DEPOSIT

The Company has deposited an amount of SR 100 million (31 DecembelSE160 million) with a local bank, which
has been rated “A” by Standard & Poor's Ratygncyepresenting the statutory deposit of 10% of its paicapital as
required by the Implementing Regulations of the “Law On Supervisi@ooperative InsuraecCompanies” issued by
SAMA. This statutory deposit cannot be withdrawn without the con$eSABIA. The statutory deposit generates special
commission incomavhich is accrued on regular basis asghown as a separate line itesipart of the shareholders’
liabilities in the Statement of Financial Positias “Deferred return on investment of statutory depo$ite accrued
commission on the deposit as at 31 December 2017 is1ISAR7,88231 December 2016: 10,242,145) and das been
disclosed in assets &Return on investment of statutodgposit”.
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29. NET SURPLUS /(DEFICIT ) FROM REINSURANCE OPERATIO NS

Netsurplus [(deficit) from reinsurance operatiotss beerhargedo the statement of shareholders’ operatiofie total
(deficit) / surplus chargettom thedate of incorporationfdahe Company to 31 Decemb@017 is as follovs:

SR
For the period from 1 May 2008 to 31 December@00eficit (11,925,49])
For the yeaended31 DecembeR009- deficit (20,545,633
For the year ended 31 DecemB@d0 —deficit (21,935,455
For the year ended 31 December 28HEficit (37,083,139
For the year ended 31 December 20%@rplus 8,388,698
Forthe year ended 31 December 204cBeficit (139,604,488
For the year ended 31 December 28D&ficit (9,397,008)
For the year ended 31 December 28Kbirplus 2,320,358
For the year ended 31 December 28B8irplus 9,926,870
For the year endedl®ecember 201# surplus 3,278,521
Net deficits (216,576768
30. NET CLAIMS PAID
2017 2016
SR SR
Gross claims paid 356,661,152 963,922,862
Retroceded share ofaims paid (63,396,464) (11,032,702)
Net claims paid 293,264,688 952,890,160

Net claims paid include all amounts paid and amounts received from insuramganes.
31. SEGMENTAL INFORMATIO N

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of intgoids about components of the Company that
are regularly reviewed by the chief decision maker in order to allocate resourttess gegments and to assess its
performanceConsstent with the Company’s internal reporting process, business andcaghkizgt segments have been
approved byhe Managemen€ommitteein respect of the Company’s activities, assets and liabilities as stated below.

Segment results do not includzalized and unrealized gaiar investments held at fair value through income statement
other income, investment management expenses and all geneadhanidtrative expensesxcept depreciation

Segment assets do not include cash and cash equivaieeaitssuranceperations, time depositsivestments held at fair
value through income statemeptepaidexpensesind other assets, dérem shareholders’ operations and property and
equipment.

Segment liabilities do not include surplus distribution payauerued expenses and other liabiliteslemployees’ end
of service benefs.
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31 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

31.1 Business segments

The Company revises periodically its estimated gross written presvdaachrelated retroceded premium upon receipt of actisamation from cedants. In some business segments, this

results in negative gross written premiums, positive retrocededyres and negative net written premiums for §@arwhen the revision took place.

General
Engineering Fire Marine Motor Accident Protection  Speciality Others* Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR

For the year ended

31 December 2017

Reinsuranceoperations’ results

Gross written premiums 77,539,96 201,207,58 47,262,46 113,588,50 75,981,19 56,149,11 68,104,59 302,173,47  942,006,88
Retroceded premiums (6,255,049 (24,626,961(14,283,982 -- (14,800,424 (135,883 --(214,411,94: (274,514,24:
Excess of loss expenses (7,159,222 (13,811,56€ (719,708 (106,083 (1,113,025 (1,720,619 -- (5,940,942 (30,571,16¢
Net written premiums 64,125,68 162,769,05 32,258,77 113,482,42 60,067,74  54,292,60 68,104,59 81,820,58 636,921,47
Change in net unearned premiums 3,387,56. (9,605,422 1,431,56. (9,946,305 (5,510,806 (588,597 (12,986,95t (7,269,464 (41,088,42F
Net earned premiums 67,513,25 153,163,63 33,690,33 103,536,11 54,556,94 53,704,01 55,117,64 74,551,12  595,833,05
Net claims paid (31,113,147(105,085,68¢ (16,185,425  (51,909,50% (17,512,54% (44,400,26C -- (27,058,127 (293,264,68¢
Change in net outstanding claims (17,465,845 (9,802,41t (8,488,471 (25,745,971 (10,009,21¢ (10,307,421 (42,528,379 (1,501,808 (125,849,52¢
Net claims incurred (48,578,992(114,888,10( (24,673,894 (77,655,474 (27,521,762 (54,707,681 (42,528,379 (28,559,93F (419,114,217
Gross acquisition costs and praf@tmmissios (22,921,944 (48,865,247(12,231,92¢ (10,693,03€ (15,817,41€ (5,620,534 (22,437,665 (7,538,332 (146,126,10:
Commissions earned on retroceded business 1,243,28. 4,021,97. 1,453,27: -- 1,658,51. 9,24« - 2,871,93. 11,258,22
Supervision and inspection fees (387,700 (1,006,038 (236,312 (567,943 (379,905 (280,749 (340,523 (1,510,864 (4,710,034
Net acquisition costs (22,066,36C (45,849,312(11,014,96% (11,260,97¢ (14,538,80¢  (5,892,03¢ (22,778,18¢ (6,177,265 (139,577,91¢
(Deficit) / surplus from reinsurance operations (3,132,100 (7,573,777 (1,998,524 14,619,66 12,496,37 (6,895,70¢ (10,188,926 39,813,92 37,140,92

* Othersinclude one large energy facultative contract with the grogaipne of SAR 187.8 million written inside Kingdom of Saudi Bia
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31 SEGMENTAL INFORMATIO N (CONTINUED)

31.1 Business segment&ontinued)

General
Engineering Fire Marine Motor Accident Protection Speciality Others Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
Forthe year ended 31 December 801
Reinsurance operations’ results
Gross written premiums 81,356,986 142,787,631 32,853,630 530,948,695t 42,053,610 48,467,274 44,594,512 62,448,016 985,510,354
Retroceded premiums (4,077,436) (240,986) (446,534) - (355,261) (10,382) - (451,444) (5,582,043)
Excess of loss expenses (6,988,481) (27,897,489) (1,266,923) (144,284) (1,761,713) (2,225,130) - (1,459,985) (41,744,005)
Net written premiums 70,291,069 114,649,15€ 31,140,173 530,804,411 39,936,636 46,231,762 44,594,512 60,536,587 938,184,30€
Change in net unearned premiums 1,170,244 1,802,430 2,481,552 214,665,691 (5,424,070) (2,946,255) (17,058,188) (1,777,870) 192,913,534
Net earned premiums 71,461,313 116,451,58€ 33,621,725 745,470,102 34,512,566 43,285,507 27,536,324 58,758,717 1,131,097,84(
Net claims paid (35,247,783) (116,710,202) (14,706,799) (687,464,532 (14,530,308) (53,625,838) -- (30,604,698) (952,890,16(
Change in net outstanding claims 16,214,600 20,965,511 3,849,265 31,924,634 (5,130,804) (6,283,167) (16,314,440) (966,65) 44,258,92
Net claims incurred (19,033,183) (95,744,691) (10,857,534) (655,539,89¢ (19,661,112) (59,909,005) (16,314,440) (31,571,35) (908,631,28)
Gross acquisition costnd profit
commissios (23,067,687) (34,677,103) (10,925,141) (67,316,937 (10,166,640) (3,074,342) (9,959,543) (5,505,053) (164,692,44¢
Commissiongarnedon retroceded busine 1,352,829 603,521 498,388 - 369,987 - - 157,538 2,982,263
Supervision and inspection fees (406,784) (713,938) (164,268) (2,654,743 (210,268) (242,336) (222,973) (312,242) (4,927,552
Net acquisition costs (22,121,642) (34,787,520) (10,591,021) (69,971,68C (10,006,921) (3,316,678) (10,182,516) (5,659,757) (166,637,73¢
Surplus/ (deficit) from reinsurance
operations 30,306,488 (14,080,625) 12,173,170 19,958,524 4,844,533 (19,940,176) 1,039,368 21,527,606 55,828,887
General
Engineering Fire Marine Motor Accident Protection Speciality Others Total
Segmentassets and_iabilities SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
As at 31 December 201
Segment assets 104,992,256 204,843,153 60,716,838 70,915,618 67,074,498 46,852,945 132,392,603 441,334,439 1,129,122,35C
Segment liabilities 212,181,926 358,733,161 79,936,719 134,248,877 96,421,253 91,554,571 142,504,980 468,805,963 1,584,387,450
As at 31 December 261
Segment assets 97,515,523 206,539,934 44,825,423 117,899,804 30,386,493 41,682,958 72,758,483 46,318,632 657,927,250

Segment liabilities

192,370,204 368,517,655 58,172,724

128,029,379 59,915,278 78,946,082

71,948,354 99,654,015 1,057,553,691

34



SAUDI RE FOR COOPERATIVE REINSURANCE COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Compahy

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

31

31.2 Geographical segments

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Other
Middle
Kingdom of Eastern Other
Saudi Arabia Countries Africa Asia territories Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR
For the year ended 31 December 201
Reinsurance operations’ results
Gross written premiums 509,969,724 110,254,203 31,614,736 221,261,849 68,906,372 942,006,884
Retroceded premiums (262,339,169) (85,337) (31,670) (12,058,06% - (274,514,242)
Excess of loss expenses (13,990,416) (6,671,177) (1,716,281) (8,158,867 (34,424) (30,571,165
Net written premiums 233,640,139 103,497,689 29,866,785 201,044,916 68,871,948 636,921,477
Change in net unearned
premiums 4,310,390 (7,568,325) (1,628,710) (22,909,85% (13,291,924) (41,088,42%
Net earned premiums 237,950,529 95,929,364 28,238,075 178,135,060 55,580,024 595,833,052
Net claims paid (134,993,633) (60,593,969) (21,857,691) (75,819,39% -- (293,264,688
Change in net outstanding clainr (18,934,256 (25,371,818) (5,162,273 (33,720,043 (42,661,138) (125,849,529
Net claims incurred (153,927,889 (85,965,787 (27,019,963 (109,539,439 (42,661,138) (419,114,21y
Gross acquisition costnd profit
commissios (50,375,019) (25,559,729) (6,046,706) (41,583,40% (22,561,243) (146,126,108
Commissiongarnedn
retroceded business 10,049,214 63,858 12,345 1,132,806 - 11,258,223
Supervision and inspection fees _ (2,549,853)  (551,271)  (158,074) (1,106,303 (344,532) (4,710,033
Net acquisition costs (42,875,658 (26,047,142) (6,192,435) (41,556,904) (22,905,775) (139,577,91%
Surplus/ (deficit) from
reinsurance operations 41,146,982 (16,083,56% (4,974,324 27,038,717 (9,986,889) 37,140,921
Other Middle
Kingdom of Eastern Other
Saudi Arabia  Countries Africa Asia territories Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR
Forthe year ended 31 December 801
Reinsurance operations’ results
Gross written premiums 702,452,897 87,071,260 17,931,558 133,460,127 44,594,512 985,510,354
Retroceded premiums (4,430,035) (920,990) (226,945) (4,073) -- (5,582,043)
Excess of loss expenses (17,095,674) (16,944,897) (2,569,415) (5,134,019) -- (41,744,005)
Net written premiums 680,927,188 69,205,372 15,135,198 128,322,036 44,594,512 938,184,306
Change in net unearned
premiums 217,201,159 1,537,374 7,756,877 (16,523,688) (17,058,188) 192,913,534
Net earned premiums 898,128,347 70,742,746 22,892,075 111,798,348 27,536,324 1,131,097,840
Net claims paid (803,908,888) (66,052,412) (17,880,463) (65,048,397) - (952,890,160)
Change in net outstanding clair 50,917,078 2,552,786 9,372,373 (2,268,852) (16,314,48) 44 258,92
Net claims incurred (752,991,811) (63,499,625) (8,508,090) (67,317,249) (16,314,44) (908,631,28)
Gross acquisition cosend profit
commissios (105,273,362) (19,878,017) (6,786,710) (22,794,814) (9,959,543) (164,692,446)
Commission®arnecn
retroceded business 2,741,549 159,370 54,528 26,85 -- 2,982,263
Supervision and inspection fees  (3,512,263)  (435,356) (89,658) (667,302) (222,973) (4,927,552)
Net acquisition costs (106,044,084) (20,154,003) (6,821,840) (23,435,292) (10,182,516) (166,637,735)
Surplus/ (deficit) from
39,092,452 (12,910,882) 7,562,145 21,045,807 1,039,36 55,828,887

reinsurance operations
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31 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

31.2 Geographical segments

Other
Kingdom of Middle
Saudi Eastern Other
Arabia Countries Africa Asia territories Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR
As at 31 Decembef017
Reinsurance operations
Segment assets 679,283,101 90,397,437 26,046,340 213,400,347 119,995,125 1,129,122,350
Segment liabilities 864,206,690 209,662,325 49,489,156 333,592,921 127,436,358 1,584,387,450
As at 31 December 261
Segment assets 303,889,027 132,456,294 25,800,492 123,353,877 72,427,560 657,927,250
Segment liabilities 471,717,637 225,540,076 42,737,516 246,044,546 71,513,916 1,057,553,691

32. RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk governance

The Company’s risk governance is manifested in a set of establisheidgp@procedureand controls which uses the
existing organizational structure to meet strategic targets. Tdrap&nhy's philosophy revolves on willing and
knowledgeable risk acceptance commensurate with the risk appetite and a splategipproved by the Boaraf
Directors The Company is exposed to insurance, retrocession, special comnassjanadit|iquidity and currency risks.

Risk managementstructure
A cohesive organizational structure is established within the Quyripaorder to identify, assess, monitardacontrol
risks.

Board of Directors
The apex of risk governance is the centralized oversight of the Board ofdbérecoviding direction and the necessary
approvals of strategies and policies in order to achieve defined corporate goals

Senior management
Senior Managemeis responsible for the day to day operations towards achieving the stggtelgiovithin the Company’s
pre-defined risk appetite.

The risks faced by the Company and the way these risks are mitigdiehbgemenareas follows
321 Reinsurance risk

The riskresultingfrom reinsurance business written is the risk that an insured eventaill mcluding the uncertainty of
the amount and timing of any resulting claim. The principal risk the @oynfaces under such reinsurance contracts is
that the actual claims andrmdit payments exceed the carrying amounewfsurance liabilities. This is influenced by the
frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid being greatemthynally estimated and subsequent
development of longerm claims.

The varidility of risks is improved by the diversification of theksswritten and théouild-up of a large portfolio of
reinsurance contracts, (inward business) as a more diversified poitfddiss likely to be affected across the board by
change in any subset the portfolio. The variability of risks is also improved by a carefiglcsion of inward business, by
the underwriting guidelines as well as the use of retrocessioectiost. The Company’s underwriting strategy includes,
but is not limited to, thedllowing:
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32.1 Reinsurance risk(continued)

o Diversification in the type of accepted risks, and within each of these datet¢w achieve sufficiently
large population of risks to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

o Diversification of the underwriting risks in terms of type and am®f risk, industry and geographical
location.

In order to minimize its financial exposure arising from large clainesCompany in the normal course of business, enters
into retrocession agreements with other parties. Such retrateggi@ementgrovide for higher underwriting capag

and allow nanagement to contain exposwréh the risk appetite of the dnpany. The retrocession is effected under
proportional treaties such as quota share and surplus angramortional treaties such as excegdoss forrisk and
catastrophe to ensure its net retention is aligned with its risk tolerance

Although the Company has retrocession agreements, it is naecklié its direct obligations to its ceding companies and
thus a credit exposure exists withspect to its retrocessionaires, to the extent that any retrocessionagblesto meet
its obligations assumed under such retrocession agreements.

Geographical concentration of risk

The Company accepteinsurance business from insuragoepanies in the Kingdom &audi Arabiathe Middle East
Africa and Asia The written premiums are distributed geographically as follows:

For the year ended
31 December2017

Amount
SR Percentage
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 509,969,724 54%
Asia 221,261,849 23%
Other Middle Eastern Countries 110,254,203 12%
Others 68,906,372 7%
Africa 31,614,736 4%

942,006,884 100%

For the year ended
31 DecembeP016
Amount

SR Percentage

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 702,452,897 71%
Asia 133,460,127 14%
Other Middle Eastern Countries 87,071,260 9%
Others 44,594,512 4%
Africa 17,931,558 2%

985,510,354  100%

The Company monitors concentration of risk by evaluating multiple risksred in the same geographical location or by
same party. For flood or earthquatkisk, a complete city is classified as a single location. For fire and propskty r
particular building and neighboring buildings, which could be afitbly a single claim incident, are considered as a single
location. Similarly, for marine risk, mujtie risks covered in a single vessel voyage are considered as a single risk while
assessing concentration of risk. The Company evaluates the concentfaigposures to individual and cumulative
insurance risks and establishes its reinsurance poli@dtae such exposures to levels acceptable to the Company.

Key assumptions
Thekeyassumptioaunderlying the liability estimatesrethe Company’s estimated ultimate loss ratio. The ultimate loss
ratio was determined using actuarial methods.
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321 Reinsurance risk(continued)

Sensitivities
The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movemeetg #assumptions such as the ultimate loss ratio with
all other assumptions held constant showing the impactbhabilities and net income as follows:

31 December2017

Impact on

Impact on net

Change in net liabilities income

assumptions SR SR

Ultimate loss ratio +10% 59,583,305 59,583,305
-10% (59,583,30% (59,583,30%

31 DecembeR016

Impact on Impact on net

Change in net liabilities income

assumptions SR SR
Ultimate loss ratio +10% 113,109,784 113,109,784
-10% (113,109,784) (113,109,784)

32.2 Retrocession risk

In order to minimize its financial exposure arising from large clainesCompany in the normal course of business, enters
into retrocession agreements with other parties. Amounts recawdrabi retrocessionare are estimated and recognized
in a manner consistent with the amounts associated with the undealyéepted policy benefits and in accordance with
the terms of therespective retrocession treaties and are presented in the statement of fimasit@ as reinsurance
assets

To minimize its exposure to significant losses from retrocessioira@mvencies, the Company evaluates the financial
condition of its retrocessionaires and monitors concentrations oit cigd arising from similar geographic regions,
activities or economic characteristics of the retrocessionaire.

Retrocessionaires are selected using the following parameters andngsideli by the Company’s Board of Directors and
Risk and Underwritingcommittee. The criteria may be summarized deVs:

a. Minimum acceptable credit rating by recognized rating agencies (arglé8d&. Poors) that is not lower than
BBB (S&P) or equivalent.

b. Reputation of particular retrocessionai@mpanies.

c. Existing or past business experience with the cegsionaire.

Furthermore, the financial strength, managerial and technical expestiselaas historical performance, wherever
applicable, are thoroughly reviewed by the Company and matched ag&hsf adquirements preet by the Company’s
Board d Directors andrisk and UnderwritingCommittee before approving them as retrocessionaires.

Retrocession contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligatiaceding companies and as a result the Company
remains liable for the portion of outstanglinlaims reinsured to the extent that the retrocessionaire fails to meet the
obligations under the retrocession agreemertts. netcredit exposure in this connection SR 63.92 million (due to
retrocessionairg@$2016: SR58.7 million).

32.3 Regulatory framework risk

The operations of the Company are subject to local regulatory requisemetiite Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Such
regulations not only prescribe approval and monitoring of activities batiapose certain restrictive provisicsisch as
capital adequacy to minimize the risk of default and insolvency on the@fore reinsurance companies and to enable
them to meet unforeseen liabilities as these arise.

32.4 Claims management risk

Claims management risk may arise within @@mpany in the event of inaccurate or incomplete case reserves and claims
settlements, poor service quality or excessive claims handling coste fitks may damage the Company and undermine
its ability to win and retain business, or incur punitive dagsa@hese risks can occur at any stage of the claims life cycle.
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32, RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
32.4 Claims management risk(continued)

The Company’s claims teams are focused on delivering quality, reljadnilit speed of service the ceding companies un
reinsurance contracts. Their aim is to adjust and process claims in a faieneffind timely manner, in accordance with
the policy’sterms and conditions, the regulatory environment, and the bushressler interests. Prompt and accurate
case reserves are set for all known claims liabilities, includinggiome for expenses, as soon as a reliable estimate can
be made of the claimgbility.

32.5 Reserving and ultimate reserves risk

Reserving and ultimate reserves risk occurs within the Companyewistablished insurance liabilities are insufficient
through inaccurate forecasting, or where there is inadequate allowance foses@nd reinsurance bad debts in
provisions. To managesserving and ultimate reserves rishe Companyactuarial team uses a range of recognised
techniques to projeatltimate claims, monitor claims development patterns and gesssiltimate insurance liability
balances.

The objective of the Company’s reserving policy is to produce accurate antereltimates that are consistent over time
and across classes of business.

32.6 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party will fail to discharge an obligatitated to a financial instrumeaihd cause the other
party to incur a financial loss. For all classes of financial assetbyéiee Company, the maximum exposure to credit risk
to the Company is the carrying valuedisclosed in the statement of financial posit&8% of the Compay’s receivables

is due from one ceding and thiemkercompanies as at 31 December 2(31 December 2@t 43%). The company does
not provide for premium receivable from local repicompaniesHowever, the following policies and procedures are in
place to mitigate the Company’s exposure to credit risk:

o To minimize its exposure to significant losses from retrocessionaselvencies, the Company evaluates
the financial condition of its retrocessionaires counterparties. Acgydias apre-requisite, the parties
with whom retrocession is effected are required to have a minimum aceeptrity rating level
affirming their financial strength.

o The Company, with respect to credit risk arising from other finhasisets, only deals witommercial
banks with strong financial position and credit ratings.
o The Company enters into inward insurance contracts with recognizediworgily third parties. In

addition, receivables from ceding companies are monitored on an ongoiagrbasiler toreduce the
Company’s exposure to bad debts.

o The Company seeks to limit credit risk with respect to ceding coiep#rough monitoring outstanding
receivables.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk fasthetof the statementsf financial position

31 December 201 31 December 2@l
SR SR

Reinsurance Shareholders’ Reinsuranct  Shareholders
operations operations operations operations
Cash equivalents 53,464,191 31,737,57¢ 42,871,784 27,950,26¢
Time Deposits 58,003,12! 67,551,60( 112,456,50
Accrued special commission income fron
time deposits 868,72¢ 3,250 1,070,01( 2,191,24:
Premiums receivable, gross 364,157,47! 186,910,56! --
Retroceded share of outstanding claims 165,839,48: -- 110,649,98I --
Accrued insurance premium 372,087,69: -- 262,339,84.
Accruedspecial commission income from
bonds and sukuk -- 3,830,98: -- 4,143,72
Statutory deposit -- 100,000,001 -- 100,000,00t
Other assets 103,566,67! -- 48,972,31¢ --
Return on investments of Statutory depos -- 13,127,88: -- 10,242,12¢
1,117,977,370 148,699,69: 720,366,100 256,983,87!
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32.6 Credit risk (continued)

The used rating grades for investmeants keing adopted by Standard & Poors

The credit quality for investments held at fair value through incstatement is as follows:

Reinsurance operations Shareholders’ operations

Credit Rating Financial 2017 2016 2017 2016
Credit quality Agency Instruments SR SR SR SR
AAA/Aaa S&P/ Moody’s/Fitch Bonds / Sukuks 4,586,138 1,550,185 79,392,852 65,000,816
AA/Aa S&P/ Moody’s/Fitch Bonds / Sukuks 16,542,711 16,472,067 74,960,561 69,799,741
A S&P/ Moody’s/Fitch Bonds / Sukuks 30,521,870 36,180,001 195,998,019 180,991,581
BBB/Baa S&P/ Moody’s/Fitch Bonds / Sukuks -- - 53,466,208 76,935,963
BB/Ba & below S&P/ Moody’s/Fitch Bonds / Sukuks -- -- 12,130,865 30,049,328
Unrated Bonds / Sukuks 1,666,088 -- 29,697,356 23,837,244
Unrated Money Market

Funds/
Investment

Funds/Equities 52,999,225 39,245,084 313,105,636 277,964,344
106,316,032 93,447,337 758,751,497 724,579,017

32.7 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company wihcounter difficulty in raising fund® meet commitments associated with
its financial liabilities.

Liquidity requirements are monitored on a monthly basisnasmtagementnsures that sufficient liquid funds are available
to meet any commitments as they arise.

All time deposits held by the Company at the statement of financial podai@ had originahatuity periods less than
five years.

Maturity profiles
The table below summarizéise maturity profile of the financial liabilities of the Compangé@ on remainingxpected
undiounted contractual obligations. Maturity profiles are determined basestiorated timing of net cash outflows from

the recognised insurance liabilities. Unearned premhsmsbeen excluded from the analysis as they are not contractual
obligations.Employees’ end of service benefits dot have any fixed maturity.

31 December2017

Reinsurance operations Shareholders operations
Up to More than Upto More than
one year one year Total one year one year Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR
LIABILITIES
Accountspayable 16,648,19: -- 16,648,19: -- -- --
Retrocession balances payable 229,763,82: -- 229,763,82. -- -- --
Accrued retroceded premiums 7,891,27¢ -- 7,891,27¢ -- -- --
Gross outstanding claims 861,052,96° -- 861,052,96 -- -- --
Accrued expenses and other
liabilities 5,742,65: -- 5,742,65. 7,069,89: -- 7,069,89:
Deferred return on investment o --
statutory deposit -- -- -- 13,127,88. 13,127,88.
1,121,098,91 -- 1,121,098,91 7,069,89: 13,127,88: 20,197774
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32.7 Liquidity risk ( continued)

Maturity profiles (continued)

LIABILITIES

Accountspayable

Retrocession balances payable
Accruedretroceded premiums

Gross outstanding claims

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

31 DecembeR016

Reinsuranceperations

Shareholders’ perations

Upto More thar

Upto More thar

Deferred return on investment of statutory def

Liquidity profile

one year one year Total oneyear one year Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR

18,217,13¢ -- 18,217,13¢ -- -- --

51,919,38. -- 51,919,38. -- -- --
75,60:¢ -- 75,602 -- -- --
680,013,94. -- 680,013,94. -- -- --
3,906,24¢ -- 3,906,24¢ 6,302,56¢ - 6,302,56¢

-- -- -- - 10,242,14' 10,242,14!
754,132,313 -- 754,132,313 6,302,56¢ 10,242,145 16,544,714

None of the liabilities shown in the statement of financial position are baséstonnted cash flows as they are all pdgab
within twelve months of the statement of finangiakition date.

Maturity analysis on expected maturity bases

31 December 201

Reinsurance’ gerations

Shareholders’ gerations

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Time Deposits
Premiumreceivablesnet

Investments held at fair value through
income statement

Investment in anssociate

Accrued insurance premiums
Retroceded share of outstanding clairr
other assets

Retrocededhare of unearned premiun
Deferred acquisition costs

Deferred excess of loss premiums
Accrued special commission income
from time deposits

Accrued special commission income
from bonds and sukuk

Statutory deposit

Return on investment of statutory depc

Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR
53,494,19: -- 53,494,19. 31,737,57¢ -- 31,737,57¢
58,003,12! -- 58,003,12! -- -- --
358,871,06: -- 358,871,06: -- -- --
106,316,03: -- 106,316,03; 758,751,49 -- 758,751,49
-- -- -- -- 91,954,38. 91,954,38:

-- 372,087,69. 372,087,69- -- -- --
165,839,48. -- 165,839,48: -- -- --
1,378,42¢ 102,188,25! 103,566,67' -- -- --
-- 117,679,18! 117,679,18:i -- -- --

-- 100,345,14. 100,345,14. -- -- -
14,299,77¢ -- 14,299,77¢ -- -- --
868,72¢ -- 868,72¢ 3,250 3,25C
3,830,98: 3,830,98:

-- -- -- -- 100,000,00( 100,000,001

-- -- -- -- 13,127,88: 13,127,88:

759,070,830 692,300,2761,451371,106

794,323,309 205,082,264 999,405,573
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32.7 Liquidity risk ( continued)

Liquidity profile (continued)

Maturity analysis on expected maturity bases

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Retrocession balances payable
Accrued retroceded premiums
Gross unearned premiums
Gross outstanding claims
Unearned commission income
other liabilities

Deferred return on investment of
statutory deposit

Gap

31 December 201

Reinsurance’ operations

Shareholders’ operations

Non-
Current current Total Current Non-current Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR
16,648,19: -- 16,648,19: -- -- --
229,763,82: --  229,763,82: -- -- --
- 7,891,27¢ 7,891,27¢ -- -- --
-- 461,488,89; 461,488,809. -- -- --
861,052,96 --  861,052,96 -- -- --
-~ 7,542,29¢ 7,542,29¢ -- -- --
5,742,65: -- 5,742,65: 7,069,89: -- 7,069,89:
-- -- -- -- 13,127,88: 13,127,88:
1,113,207,63 476,922,461 1,590,130,10 7,069,89: 13,127,88: 20,197,77:

(354,136,805 215,377,811 (138,758,995 787,253,41° 191,954,38. 979,207,79!
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32.7 Liquidity risk ( continued)

RISK MANAGEMEN T (CONTINUED)

Maturity analysis on expected maturity basesdqontinued)

31 December 208

Reinsurance merations

Shareholders’ perations

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Time Deposits

Premium receivableset

Investments held at fair value throu

income statement

Accrued insurance premiums

Retroceded share of unearned

premiums

Deferredexcess of loss premiums

Retroceded share of outstanding

claims

Deferred acquisition costs

other assets

Accrued special commission incom:
from time deposits

Accrued special commission incom:
from bonds and sukuk

Statutory deposit

Return on investment of statutory

deposit

Current  Non-curreni Total Current  Non-curreni Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR
42,891,78:- -- 42,891,78: 27,950,26¢ -- 27,950,26¢
67,551,60( -- 67,551,60( 112,456,50 -- 112,456,50°
181,957,59. -- 181,957,59. -- -- --
93,447,33° -- 93,447,33° 724,579,01 --  724,579,01
-- 262,339,84; 262,339,84. -- -- --

-- 3,758,10: 3,758,10: -- -- --
17151615 ¢ - 17,516,59‘ - - -
110,649,98I -- 110,649,98i - - -
--  81,705,13: 81,705,13: -- -- --
1,722,31¢ 47,250,000 48,972,31¢ -- -- --
1,070,01( -- 1,070,01( 2,191,24: -- 2,191,24:
-- - -- 4,143,72% -- 4,143,72:

-- -- -- 100,000,00t 100,000,00I

-- -- -- -- 10,242,14! 10,242,14!

516,807,223 395,053,076 911,860,299 871,320,762 110,242,145 981,562,907

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Retrocession balances payable
Accrued retroceded premiums
Gross unearned premiums

Gross outstanding claims
Unearned commission income
Accrued expenses and other liabiliti
Deferred return on investment
statutory deposit

18,217,13¢ -- 18,217,13¢ - - -
51,919,38:. -- 51,919,38. - - -
-- 75,60¢ 75,60¢ - - -
-- 306,479,381 306,479,38I - - -
680,013,94. - 680,013,944 - - -
- 848,24~ 848,24~ - - -
3,906,24¢ -- 3,906,24¢  6,302,56¢ -- 6,302,56¢
-- - - -- 10,242,114 10,242,14!
754,056,710 307,403,2281,061,45938  6,302,56¢ 10,242,14'! 16,544,714

Gap

(237,249,48y 87,649,848(149,599,639) 865,018,193 100,000,000 965,018,193

32.8 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will flietdae to changes in foreign exchange raths. T
Company’s transactions are carried out in local and foreign currencies. Mamdagtieves that there is no significant
foreign currency exposure since most of the Compatrgssactionsiot denominated in Saudi Riyalere undertakem

foreign currencies which are peggedhe Saudi Riyal.
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32.

32.8 Currency risk (continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The table below represents the Company'’s assets and liabilities denorimimaggdrcurrencies as follows:

31 December 201

ASSETS

Reinsurance operations

Cash and cash equivalent

Time Deposits

Investment held at fair value through income
statement

Premiums receivablaet

Accrued special commission income
Accrued Insurance Premiums
Retrocededhare of unearned premiums
Retroceded share of outstanding Claims
Deferred acquisition costs

Prepaid Retroceded Premium

Prepaid expensedepositsand other assets
Due from shareholders' operations
Property and equipment, net

Shareholders’ operations

Cash and cash equivalent

Time Deposit

Accrued special commission income from tir
deposits

Accrued special commission income from
bonds and sukuk

Investment held at fair value through income
statement

Investments in ansaociate

StatutoryDeposit

Return on investment of statutory deposit
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Property and equipment, net

SR usD QAR AED EUR KWD INR Others Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
31,772,333 17,422,103 - 461,093 516,130 - -~ 3322532 53,494,191
- 58,003,125 - - - - - - 58,003,125
52,999,225 53,316,807 106,316,032
17,049,960 237,443,434 7,894,486 14,399803 122,961 7,218,897 25,617,590 49,123,933 358,871,064
868,728 - - - - - - - 868,728
131,779,426 22,425014 6,040,447 8,535,388 3,256,274 3,050,093 31,561,959 165,439,093 372,087,694
117,679,188 - - - - - - ~ 117,679,188
165,839,483 - - - - - - ~ 165,839,483
28,194,024 12,224,036 2,518,155 5,036,287 734,808 1,366,086 3,871,414 46,400,334 100,345,144
14,299,778 - - - - - - - 14,299,778
1,775,790 102,188,250 - - - - - — 103,964,040
144,461,682 - - - - - - ~ 144,461,682
2,286,389 - - - - - - - 2,286,389
8,766,350 22,905,949 - - - - - 65,280 31,737,579
- 3,250 - - - - - - 3,250
3,174,117 656,866 - - - - - - 3,830,983
288,641,502 460,045,477 - - - - -~ 10,064518 758,751,497
91,954,382 - - - - - - - 91,954,382
100,000,000 - - - - - - - 100,000,000
13,127,882 - - - - - - - 13,127,882
228,471 - - - - - - - 228,471
31,249,580 - - - - - - - 31,249,580

1,246,148,290 986,634,31

16,453,088 28,432,571

4,630,173 11,635076 61,050,963

274,415,690 2,629,400,162
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32. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
32.8 Currency risk (continued)

31 December 2016

ASSETS

Reinsurance operations

Cash and cash equivalents

Time Deposits

Accrued special commission income from time
deposits

Premiums receivable, net

Investment held at fair valuéhrough income
statement

Accrued Insurance Premiums
Retroceded share of unearned premiums
Deferred excess of loss Premium
Retroceded share of outstanding Claims
Deferred acquisition costs

Prepaid expensedepositand other assets
Due from shareholders' operations
Property anéquipmentnet

Shareholders’ operations

Cash and cash equivalent

Time Deposits

Accrued speciatommission income from time
deposits

Accrued special commission income from boni
and Sukuks

Investment held at fair value through income
statement

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Statutory Deposit

Return on investment of Statutory Deposit
Property and equipment, net

SR usb QAR AED EUR KWD INR Others Total

SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
14,577,812 27,552,304 - 641 17,539 - - 743,488 42,891,784
67,551,600 - - - - - - - 67,551,600
1,070,010 - - - - - - - 1,070,010
62,218,160 34,892,900 8,907,860 817,952 363,916 7,733,128 12,044,195 54,979,483 181,957,594
39,245,085 54,202,252 - - - - - - 93,447,337
101,115,068 23,631,461 9,959,417 4,294,159 2,204,093 3,408,349 18,427,328 99,299,967 262,339,842
3,758,101 - - - - - - - 3,758,101
17,516,594 - - - - - - - 17,516,594
110,649,986 - - - - - - - 110,649,986
27,073,901 7,856,704 3,127,012 2,332,453 661,440 1,352,534 3,158,243 36,142,846 81,705,133
992,778 48,257,183 - - - - - 26,126 49,276,087
152,144,139 - - - - - - - 152,144,139
3,402,655 - - - - - - - 3,402,655
26,841,627 805,517 - - - - - 303,125 27,950,269
112,456,507 - - - - - - - 112,456,507
2,191,242 - - - - - - - 2,191,242
3,416,471 727,256 - - - - - - 4,143,727
252,544,672 454,469,832 - - - - ~ 17,564,513 724,579,017
45,178 - - - - - - - 45,178
100,000,000 - - - - - - - 100,000,000
10,242,145 - - - - - - - 10,242,145
32,110,109 - - - - - - - 32,110,109
1,141,163,840 652,395,409 21,994,289 7,445205 3,246,988 12,494011 33,629,766 209,059,548 2,081,429,056
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32. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

32.8 Currency risk (continued)

31 December 201

LIABILITIES

Reinsurance operations

Accounts payable

Reinsurance balances payable
Accrued retroceded premiums
Gross unearned premiums

Gross outstanding claims
Unearned commission income
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Employees end of service benefits
Accumulated surplus

Shareholdersoperations

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Provision for zakat and income tax
Due to reinsurance operations

Deferred return on investment of statutory

deposit

SR USD QAR AED EUR KWD INR Others Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
5,871,723 (1,013,540) 2,163,885 967,392 318,910 371,951  (141,285) 8,109,19 16,648,193
229,763,824 - - - - - - - 229,763,824
7,891,275 - - - - - - - 7,891,275
126,666,471 134,489,614 9,368,785 16,596,004 2,461,144 5577,289 26,604,350 139,725,223 416,488,892
304,340,367 150,496,755 22,397,885 32,013,095 5,485,983 28,663,644 90,076,102 227,579,18 861,052,967
7,542,299 - - - - - - - 7,542,299
4,689,754 60,679 992,218 5,742,651
5,729,277 - - - - - 5,729,277
2,657,160 - - - 2,657,160
6,322,480 730,537 - - - 16,875 7,069,892
37,431,370 - - - - . 37,431,370
144,461,682 - - - - 144,461,682
13,127,882
- - - - - - : 13,127,882
896,495,568 284,764,045 33,930,555 49,576,491 8,266,037 34,612,884 116,539,167 376,422,62 1,800,607,364
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32.

32.8 Currency risk (continued)

31 December 2016

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

LIABILITIES

Reinsurance operations

Accounts payable

Reinsurance balances payable
Accrued retroceded premiums
Gross unearned premiums

Gross outstanding claims
Unearneccommission income
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Employees end of service benefits
Accumulated surplus

Shareholders operations

Provision for zakat and income tax

Due to reinsurance operations

Accrued expenses and othiabilities
Deferred return on investment of statutory
deposit

SR USD QAR AED EUR KWD INR Others Total

SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
6,787,828 2,966,944 42,291 (424,427) 100,262 23,339 52,630 8,668,272 18,217,139
51,919,382 - - - - - - - 51,919,382
75,603 - - - - - - - 75,603
123,181,093 25,912,222 12,196,267 8,690,717 2,098,156 6,222,189 20,853,884 107,324,852 306,479,380
275,034,431 51,789,673 18,956,384 83,494,781 4,559,918 19,042,375 70,394,596 156,741,783 680,013,941
848,245 - - - - - - - 848,245
3,133,538 46,602 726,108 3,906,248
3,958,044 - - - - 3,958,044
2,292,880 - - - 2,292,880
39,728,370 - - - 39,728,370
152,144,139 - - - - 152,144,139
1,225,252 5,077,317 - - - 6,302,569
10,242,145 - - - - - - - 10,242,145
670,570,950 85,792,758 31,194,942 91,761,071 6,758,336 25,287,903 91,301,110 273,461,015 1,276,128,085
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32 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

32.9 Special commission rate risk

The Company is exposed to special commission rate risk on its bonds and sektikémtsSpecial Commission rate risk
ariseson bonds andgukuk which are exposed to thiéuctuations in special commission rates

The Company manages special commission rate risk by investing in Vangusnd short duration financial assets, along
with cash and cash equivalents. The investment committee monitorsatierdof these assets on a regular b&sisation

of reinsurace operations ar8hareholdersperationsinvestments in bonds and sukukrgfolios as at 31 December 201

is around &3 years and B6 years respectively (31 December 80d.31years and B3year respectivelyA hypothetical
increase/decrease of 10 basis points in yield curve will entail decrease/inerelasadisukuk portfolio values of
reinsurance operations and Shareholders operations’ investige3/®0.33 million and SR2.52millio n asat 31 December
2017 (31 December 2@t SR0.34million SR2.52million respectively.

32.10 Market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrumdéhfluctuate caused by the facto(ether than those
arising from commission rate risk or currency rigkipt affectall financial instruments traded in the market.

Efficient management of market price risk is key to the investmeabropany assets. Appropriate levels of investment
risk is determined byisk/return profile of the assef§he Companyhas a diversified portfolio of investmentagcluding
investmentin thelisted equities securities. The Company manages the equitytrpaiderisk through diversification and
by placing limits on individual and total equity instrumem®s5% change in the fair value of these investments, with all
other variables held constant, would impact the statement of shdgeti@perations by increase / decrease 88 8R9,735
(2016: SR7,148,760.

3211 Capital managementrisk

Capital requirements are set and regulated by the Saudi Arabian Monetagy AGlkese requirements are put in place to
ensure sufficient solvency margins. Further objectives are set byothpady tomaintain healthy capital ratios in order
to support its business objectives and maximise shareholders’ value

The Company manages its capital requirements by assessingl&hbatween reported and required capital levels on a
regular basis. Adjustments current capital levels are made in light of changes in market conditionslaohbaracteristics

of the Company’s activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital seuthe Company may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholdersissue shares.

The table below summarizes the minimum regulatory capital of the Coraparnye total capital held:

2017 2016

SR SR
Total capital held 828,792,798 805,300,971
Minimum regulatory capital 200,000,000 200,000,000

In the opinion of thenanagementhe Company has fully complied with the externally imposedaapiquirements during
the reported financiglear.

32.12. Fair value of financial instruments

Financial instruments consist of financial assets and financial liabilitigsvatae is the amount for which an asset could
be exchanged, or a liability settled between knowledgeable willing partasarm’s length transaction. Underlying the
definition of fair value is a presumption that @mterprise is a going concern without any intention or need to liquidate,
curtail materially the scale of its operations or undertake a transactiatverse terms. The Company’s financial assets
consist of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, invatstianed accrued income and its financial liabilities consist of
payables, accrued expenses and gross outstanding claims. The fair vahaxdlfassets and liabilities are not mathrial
different from their carrying values at the statement of firempmsition.
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33. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

a) Legal proceedings and regulations

The Company operates in the reinsurance industry and is subject to xE#dings in the normal course of business.
While it is not practicable to forecast or determthe final results of all pending or threatened legal proceedings,
management does not believe that such proceedings (including litigatidinsave a material effect on its results and
financial position.

b) Bank Guarantees

As at 31 December 2017, t@®mpany has deposited and pledged SR 47,250,000 (31 December 2016: SR 47,250,000)
with local bank to obtain the standby letter of credit towdrdsd At Lloyds(FAL) for its participation in a Lloyds
Syndicates and for 2015, 2016 and 2017 underwriting years. In addition, the i§ongsadeposited SR 54,938,250 (31
December2016: Nil) with Lloyd’'s London as FIA for its continued participation in a Lloyds Siioatesfor 2018
underwriting yearUpon issuance of stand by letter of credit, the deposit with kleyitl be withdrawn.

Further, the office premises related refundable deposit amounts to SR4L(®L, December 2016: SR 102,7.74)

34. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The Board of Directors on their meeting held on 24 May 2017mewnded to the Extraordinary General Assembly
meeting to reduce the Company's share capital from SR 1,000,000,060 800800,000.0n 1 January 2018, the
Company got approval from the extralinary general meeting to reduce its share capited.Companys in the process
of revisingits share capital after completing all the regulatory requirements.

35. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain figures for the prior year have been reclassified to corifothe presentation made in the current year, however
the impact of such reclassifications was not material to the overall @gserdf the financial statements.

36. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors @jabll439H corresponding t@8 March
2018.
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